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BSE Limited   
Corporate Relationship Deptt. 
PJ Towers, 25th Floor,  
Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001 

Code No.523642 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, Plot No.C/1, G-Block 
Bandra Kurla Complex,  
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051 

Code No. PIIND 

Dear Sir/Madam,  

Sub: Outcome of Board Meeting 

In compliance of Regulation 30 read with Part A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), we hereby inform 
you that the Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company at its meeting held today i.e., 
May 19, 2025, has inter-alia, considered and approved the following: 

i. Pursuant to Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the audited standalone &
consolidated financial results of the Company for the quarter and financial year ended
March 31, 2025. A copy of the said financial results along with the statement of assets
& liabilities, cash flow statements, auditor’s reports, and declaration from Chief Financial
Officer in respect of auditor’s reports with unmodified opinion are enclosed herewith as
Annexure A.

ii. Recommended a final dividend at the rate of Rs.10/- per share i.e., 1000% on the equity
shares of the Company of face value of Re. 1/- each, for the financial year 2024-25,
subject to the approval of the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
The total dividend for the year (including interim dividend of Rs. 6/- per equity share paid
during the year) would be Rs. 16/- per equity share of Re.1/- each. The said dividend, if
declared by the Members of the Company at the ensuing AGM, shall be
credited/dispatched to the Members within 30 days of declaration.

iii. Convening of 78th AGM of the Company on Thursday, August 14, 2025, through Video
Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means “VC/OAVM”. Pursuant to Regulation 42 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has fixed Thursday, August 07, 2025, as the
Record Date for the purpose of determining the members eligible to receive the Final
dividend for the financial year 2024-25.

iv. Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointment of M/s Makarand
M. Joshi & Co., Peer Reviewed Firm of Company Secretaries in Practice (Firm
registration number: P2009MH007000; Peer Review Certificate number: 6290/2024), as
a Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years
commencing from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30, subject to approval of the Members of
the Company at the ensuing AGM. Information as required under Regulation 30 - Part
A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing Regulations, is enclosed as Annexure B.

v. Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, re-appointment of M/s K.G.
Goyal & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000017), as Cost Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2025-26. The remuneration of the Cost Auditors is
subject to ratification by the Members at the ensuing AGM. Information as required under
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Regulation 30 - Part A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing Regulations, is enclosed as 
Annexure C 

vi. Based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
following appointments / re-appointments, subject to the approval of the Members of the
Company at the ensuing AGM. Information as required under Regulation 30 - Part A of
Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing Regulations, is enclosed as Annexure D1 to Annexure
D5 (as stated below):

a. Re-appointment of Mr. Mayank Singhal, (DIN: 00006651) (who holds office as Vice
Chairperson & Managing Director of the Company up to September 30, 2025) as
Vice Chairperson & Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five)
years with effect from October 1, 2025, up to September 30, 2030 – Annexure D1

b. Re-appointment of Mr. Rajnish Sarna, (DIN: 06429468) (who holds office as Joint
Managing Director of the Company up to November 6, 2025) as Joint Managing
Director of the Company for a period of 3 (three) years with effect from November
7, 2025, up to November 6, 2028 – Annexure D2

c. Re-appointment of Ms. Lisa J. Brown (DIN: 07053317) (who holds office as an
Independent Director up to September 24, 2025) as an Independent Director of
the Company for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from
September 25, 2025, up to September 24, 2030 – Annexure D3

d. Appointment of Dr. Tanjore Soundararajan Balganesh (DIN: 00648534) as Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company, with effect from September
5, 2025 (i.e. upon completion of his second term as an Independent Director on
September 4, 2025) – Annexure D4

e. Appointment of Mr. Vegulaparanan Kasi Viswanathan (DIN:01782934) as an
Additional Director in the category of Independent Director on the Board of the
Company, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from May 19, 2025,
up to May 18, 2030 – Annexure D5

You are requested to take the aforesaid information on your records. 

The meeting of the Board commenced at 01:30 p.m. (IST) and concluded at 6:55 p.m (IST). 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 
For PI Industries Limited 

Shruti Joshi 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Encl.: As above 



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of PI Industries Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of PI Industries Llrnited("theCompany"),
which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatmy information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters 

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters mlre addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter 

Assessment of carrying values of invesbnent 

in a wholly owned subsidiary 

(Refer to note 7(a) and 44 in the standalone 
financial statements) 

. The Company has made investments in equity and 
• optionally convertible debentures in PI Health

Sciences Limited (PIHSL), a wholly owned 
subsidiary, whose carrying value as on March 31, 
2025 is INR 5,329 Million and INR 6,581 Million 
respectively. 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

• We understood from the management, assessed the
design and tested the operatigg _effectiveness of the
Company's key controls around assessment of the
recoverable amount of the investments .

•We evaluated the competence, capability,
independence and objectivity of the management's
expert, obtained an understanding and evaluated the
work of the management's expert.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Building No. 8, 8th Floor, Tower - B, DLF 
T: +91 (124) 6169910 

-122 002

Regfstered office and Head office: l l -A1 Vishnu Dig amber Marg, Suehs ta BhawanJ New DeJhi - 11 D002 
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Annexure A
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'The equity investments in wholly owned subsidiary is 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if 
any, as per Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'; and 
investment in optionally convertible debentures is 
measured at fair value through profit or loss account 
('FVTPL') at each reporting date as per Ind AS 109 

'Financial Instruments'. 

The Company has performed an assessment of 
appropriateness of the carrying amount of 
investments as on the balance sheet date by 
estimating the recoverable value of the investments, 
using the discounted cash flow model with the 
involvement of a valuation expert engaged by the 
management. Based on their assessment, the 
management has concluded that no provision for 
impairment was necessary as at March 31, 2025. 

We considered this as a key audit matter because of 
the significant carrying amount of the investment 
and high estimation uncertainty in assumptions used 
such as discount rate, rate of growth over the 
estimation period and terminal growth rate which are 
affected by future market and economic conditions 
and, hence, are inherently uncertain. 

Other Information 

• Together with the auditor's valuation experts:-

► Examined the report prepared by the external 
valuation expert engaged by the Management 
and understood and evaluated the projections 
thereon by testing key inputs and assumptions 
made in the value-in-use calculations and 
performed sensitivity analysis. 

► Assessed the appropriateness of the key 
assumptions considered in forecasting the cash 
flows for assessment of the recoverable amount 
of investments. 

• We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made in 
the Standalone financial statements in accordance with 
the requirements of the Standard. 

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Integrated Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection 
with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone financial 
statements 

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
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financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

7. In preparing the standalone :financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

8. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements 

9- Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements. 

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone :financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

14. As requh-ed by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 15(h)( vi) below 
on reporting under Rule n(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made 
to our remarks in paragraph 15(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 15(h)(vi) 
below on reporting under Rule n(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 
A". 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Indian Accounting 
Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts - Refer Note 7(g) and 14(b) to the financial statements; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year. 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in Note 41(iii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
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funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 
Note 41(iii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

v. The dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in compliance with Section 123 of 
the Act. 

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software 
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and 
that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except 
that (a) the audit log at the application level, will not get generated in case of modification, if any 
pe1formed by the users with certain specific privileged access; and (b) the audit trail feature at 
database level which was enabled from May 11, 2024 contains only the modified values to record any 
direct changes at the database level. During the course of perlorming our procedmes, in respect of 
the audit trail feature enabled, we did not notice any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered 
with. Also, refer note 4 7 to the standalone financial statements. 

Further, the audit trail to the extent maintained in the prior year, has been preserved by the Company 
as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

16. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 

o~-?u,~-
sougata Mukherjee 

artner 
Membership Number: 057084 
UDIN: 25057084BMOAST3694 
Date: May 19, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under 
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of PI Industries 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

5- We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
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company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effe~ 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 

l.:::~~y 
Partner 
Membership Number: 057084 
UDIN: 25057084BMOAST3694 
Date: May 19, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books 
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, we report that: 

i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a 
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically 
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on 
such verification. 

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 4 
to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 
or Intangible Assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on 
whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the 
amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each 
class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or Intangible Assets does 
not arise. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) 
(formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made 
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has 
appropriately disclosed the details in the standalone financial statements does not arise. 

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been con.ducted at 
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and 
procedure of such verification. by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with 
third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on 
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate 
for each class of inventory. 

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 50 
Million, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed 
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited 
books of account. However, the Company has not filed return or statements for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2025 with the banks and accordingly, we are unable to comment on such 
reconciliations as required by clause 3(ii)(b). 

iii. (a) The Company has made investments in two companies (wholly owned subsidiaries), seven mutual 
fund schemes and three deposits with the financial institutions. The Company has not granted 
any secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans or stood guarantee or provided 
security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) 
and (iii)(f) of the order are not applicable to the Company. 
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(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments, the terms and conditions under which such investments 
were made are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

iv. In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect of the investments made, and there were no loans, guarantees and securities 
provided by it. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provide any 
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits o~ amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred 
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under. 

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to 
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We 
have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii. (a) In our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including 
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues, as applicable, 
with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) There are no statutory dues of provident fund, employee state insurance, cess which have not 
been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory dues referred to in 
sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2025 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are 
as follows: 

Name of the statute Nature of dues .Am.ount .Am.owit Period to Forum where the 
Demanded Paid under which the dispute is pending 
(Rs. In Protest (Rs. antowit 
Million) In Million) relates 

Assam Value Added Tax Act, Value Added Tax 0.15 0.04 2007-08 Joint Commissioner 
2003 (excluding interest Guwahati 

and penalty) 
Kerala Value Added Tax Act, 0.34 0.34 2008-09 Deputy Commissioner 
2003 (Appeals) Earnakulam 

Kerala Value Added Tax Act, 0.18 0.18 2009-10 Deputy Commissioner 
2003 (Appeals) Earnakulam 

Madhya Pradesh Value Added 0.40 0-40 2011-12 Deputy Commissioner 
Tax Act, 2002 (Appeals), Indore 

Gujarat Value Added Tax Act, 18.59 18.59 2012-13 Joint Commissioner, 
2003 Baroda 

Gujarat Value Added Tax Act, 11.69 11.69 2013-14 Joint Commissioner, 
2003 Baroda 

West Bengal Value Added Tax 0.25 0.25 2013-14 Taxation Tribunal, 
Act, 2003 Kolkata 
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Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Amowit Period to Forum where the 
Demanded Paid under which the dispute is pending 
(Rs. In Protest (Rs. amount 
Million) In Million) relates 

Integrated Goods and Services GST 181.98 - 2017-18, High court of Gujarat, 
Tax 2018-19 Ahmedabad 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 27.37 2.49 2017-18 Commisioner Appeal 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 0.54 0.04 2017-18 & Commisioner Appeal 
2018-19 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 2.62 0.26 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner, 
Central Tax, Guwahati 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 2.10 0.10 2018-19 Commisioner Appeal 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 0.08 - 2019-20 Assistant Commissioner, 
State Tax West Bengal 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 0.60 0.03 2019-20 Assistant Commissioner, 
State Tax Bharuch 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 2.03 2.03 2024-25 Commisioner Appeal 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 29.34 - 2009-10 Rajasthan High Court 
(Excluding interest 
and penalty) 20.42 - 2012-13 Rajasthan High Court 

32.99 - 2013-14 Rajasthan High Court 

14.58 14.58 2015-16 CIT (Appeals) 

96.61 96.61 2016-17 CIT (Appeals) 

209.26 84.22 2017-18 CIT (Appeals) 

132.54 - 2019-20 CIT (Appeals) 

134.81 - 2020-21 CIT (Appeals) 

4.95 - 2009-10 Income Tax Appellate 
Trib.unal 

10.21 2.04 2010-11 Income Tax Appellate 
Tribunal 

0.11 0.02 2013-14 CIT (Appeals) 

145.26 - 2021-22 Assessing officer 
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Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Amount Period to Forwn where the 
Demanded Paid under which the dispute is pending 
(Rs. In Protest (Rs. amount 
Million) In Million) relates 

Integrated Goods and Services GST 181.98 - 2017-18, High court of Gujarat, 
Tax 2018-19 Ahmedabad 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 27.37 2-49 2017-18 Commisioner Appeal 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 0.54 0.04 2017-18 & Commisioner Appeal 
2018-19 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 2.62 0.26 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner, 
Central Tax, Guwahati 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 2.10 0.10 2018-19 Commisioner Appeal 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 0.08 - 2019-20 Assistant Commissioner, 
State Tax West Bengal 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 0.60 0.03 2019-20 Assistant Commissioner, . State Tax Bharuch 

Central Goods and Services Tax GST 2.03 2.03 2024-25 Comrnisioner Appeal 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 29.34 - 2009-10 Rajasthan High Court 
(Excluding interest 
and penalty) 20.42 - 2012-13 Rajasthan High Court 

32.99 - 2013-14 Rajasthan High Court 

14.58 14.58 2015-16 CIT (Appeals) 

96.61 96.61 2016-17 CIT (Appeals) 

209.26 84.22 2017-18 CIT (Appeals) 

132.54 - 2019-20 CIT (Appeals) 

134.81 - 2020-21 CIT (Appeals) 

4-95 - 2009-10 Income Tax Appellate 
Tribunal 

10.21 2.04 2010-11 Income Tax Appellate 
Tribunal 

0.11 0.02 2013-14 CIT (Appeals) 

145.26 - 2021-22 Assessing officer 
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ix. (a) As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the 
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful 
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

(c) The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, 
and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report 
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the 
Company. 

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that 
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

{f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in 
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

x. (a) In our opinion, the monies raised by way of further public offer during FY 2020-2021 (Qualified 
Institution Placement) which were not required for immediate utilisation were invested in 
mutual funds, bank deposits (refer note 42). The Company has not raised any money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3(x){b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across 
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during 
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) 
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3{xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in 
accordance ·with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by 
the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the 
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xm. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been 
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disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 
24 "Related Party Disclosures" specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business. 

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us. 

xv. In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of 
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial/ housing finance activities during the 
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

( d) In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group.Accordingly, the reporting 
under clause 3(xvi)( d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the 
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that 
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have 
any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has transferred the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility remaining unspent 
under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to ongoing project to a special account 
in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Act. (Also, refer note 24 
to the financial statements) 
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xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone 
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included 
in this report. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 

{;::~::r 
Membership Number: 057084 
ODIN: 25057084BMOAST3694 
Date: May 19, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 



Pl Industries Ltd. 
STATEMENT OF STANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 

IS.No Particulars 31.03.2025 

I 

II 

Ill 

IV 

V 

VI 

VII 

VIII 

IX 

X 

A 

B 

XI 

XII 

XIII 

XIV 

Audited*• 

Revenue from operations 

other Income ,~ 
Total income (1+11) ,_ 
Expenses 

Cost of materials consumed 

Purchases al stock -in- trade 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress 
and stock in trade 

Employee benefit expense 

Finance cost 

Depreclallon and amortisation expense 

Net impairment losses on financial assets 

other expense 

Total Expenses 

Profit before i,xceptional item$ and tax (Ill-IV) - ,~ 
Exceplional items 

,_ 
Profit before tax (V-VIJ ,_ 
Income tax expense 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Income tax of earlier years ,~ 
Total Tax Expense ,_ 

,~ 
l!ront for the period/year (VII-VIII) ,_ 
Other Comprehensive lncomel(Loss) after tax (OCI) 

I terns that wil I no I be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurements gainl(loss) on defined benefits plans 

Income lax relating to lhe above item 

Items that will be reclassified to profrt or loss 

Effective portion of gainl(loss) on cash now hedges 

Income tax relating lo above items _,_ 
To,.tal Other Comprehensive lncomel{Loss) for the 
period/years. 

_ ,_ 

T91<1t Comprehensive Income for the period/year (IX+X) 

Paid-up equity share capita I 

(Face value of~ 11- each (Previous Year~ 11- each)) 

Other Equity excluding Revaluation Reserves as per 
Balance sh eel 

Earning per Share• (in 'l 

(a) Basic 

(b) Diluted 

See accompanyin~ notes to the financial resulls 
Aciuals for lhe QuaMr . not annualised 

•• Refer Nole J 

16,482 

682 

17,164 

7,385 

137 

(48) 

1,389 

16 

647 

113 

2,467 

12,106 

5,058 

-
5,058 

889 

368 

(57) 

1,200 

3,858 

102 

(36) 

415 

(145) 

336 

4,194 

152 

25.43 

25.42 

(In f Million) 

Quarter ended Year ended 

31.12.2024 31.03.20Z4 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Unaudited Audited .. Audited 

17,798 16,263 75,712 71,454 

728 561 3,006 2,243 

18,526 16,824 78,718 73,697 

7,459 8,117 32,190 33,952 

334 344 1,105 2,122 

611 (947) 2,644 (248) 

1,432 1,458 5,951 5,818 
20 38 68 92 

671 623 2,626 2,461 
4 3 141 97 

2,512 2,759 10,036 9,456 

13,043 12,395 54,761 53,750 

5,483 4,429 23,957 19,947 

- - . - -
5,483 4,429 23,957 19,947 

954 737 4,183 3,466 

406 (157) 1,281 (921) 
(115) 5 (172) 95 

1,245 585 5,292 2,640 

4,238 3,844 18,665 17,307 

(23) (115) 32 (94) 

9 40 (11) 33 

(537) 252 (353) 525 

187 (87) 123 (183) 

(364) 90 (209) 281 

3,874 3,934 18,456 17,588 

152 152 152 152 

1,02,875 86,660 

27.93 25.34 123.03 114.07 
27.93 25.34 123.02 114.07 



Pl Industries Ltd. 
STATEMENT OF STANDALONE AUDITED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT MARCH 2025 

IS.No 

I ASSETS 
1 Non Current Assets 

Property, Plant & Equipment 

Capital work-in-progress 

Goodwill 

Other Intangible assets 

Intangible a ssel under developme nl 

Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) 0th er financial assets 

Deferred tax assets (Net) 

Non- Current tax assets 

Other non-current assets 

Total non-current assets 

2 Current Assets 

lnvento ries 

Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 

(ii) Trade receivables 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 

(v) Loans 

(vi) Other financial assets 

Contract asse1S 

Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Total Assets 

II EQUITY & LIABILITIES 

1 Equity 
Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 

Total equity 

2 Liabllities 
Non Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Lease liabilities 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 

Total Non current liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

( i) Lease I ia bil itias 

(ii) Trade payables 

Particulars 

a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(iii) other financial liabilities 

Provisions 

Current Tax Liabilities 

other currant liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

* 

As at 
31.03.2025 

Audited 

28,603 
2,822 

671 

221 
1,620 

20,090 
2,186 

-
78 

190 
56,481 

B,372 

12,598 

11,949 
4,573 

18,321 

30 
201 

4,043 
2,626 

62,713 

1,19,194 

152 
1,02,875 
1,03,027 

346 

279 

55 
649 

1,329 

176 

485 

10,528 

2,312 
258 

236 
843 

14,838 

16,167 

1,19,194 

(In '!""Millian) 

31.03.2024 
Audited 

25,381 
1,170 

671 

289 
1,036 

12,025 
450 

404 
144 
524 

42,094 

11,668 

12,460 

7,027 
7,658 

17,786 

48 
168 
889 

2,476 
60,180 

1,02,274 

152 
86,660 
86,812 

301 

179 

174 
-

654 

144 

265 

11,435 

1,708 
352 

62 
842 

14,808 

15,462 

1,02,274 

; 



Pl Industries Ltd. 
Notes 

The above financial results were reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee of the Company and approved by the Board of 
Directors at their meeting held on May 19, 202S. 

2 The Financial results for all the periods presented have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles 
of Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time. 

3 The Figures for the March quarter are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of full financial year and the published 
unaudiled year to date figures up to the third quarter of respective financial year. 

4 The Company is in the business of manufacturing and distribution of Agro Chemicals and accordingly has one reportable business 
segment viz. 'Agro Chemicals'. 

5 The Company has subscribed the eciuity shares of its wholly owned subsidiary i.e., "Pl Industries Management Consultancies L.L.C.", 
Dubai amounting to f 4,265 Mn for acquisition and other business purposes during the year. 

6 The Company raised, 20,000 Mn during the quarter ended September 30, 2020 through Qualified Institutional Placement (QIP) of equity 
shares. Out of the funds received of 1" 19,750 Mn (net of expense off 250 Mn), the Company invested f 16,105 Mn in its subsidiaries. 
Balance funds of f 3,645 Mn received pursuant to QIP remain invested in liquid and other debt mutual funds. 

7 Standalone Statement of Cash flows is attached in Annexure I. 

B The Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 19, 2025 have recommended final dividend off 10 per equity share, subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual General Meeting. With this, total dividend for the year (including interim dividend of 
f 6 per equity share paid during the year) is f 16 per share. 

9 The previous period's/ year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged/ reclassified wherever necessa,y. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 19, 2025 

Regd. Office: Udaisagar Road, Udaipur - 313001 (Raj) 
Phone: 0294 24924S1-55 Fax: 0294 2491946 
CIN: L24211RJ1946PLC000469 

For Pl Industries Limited 

~ 
Mayank Singhal 
Vice Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN : 000066S1 



Pl Industries Ltd. 
STANDALONE STATEMENT Of AUDITED CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 

Annexure I 

(In~ Million) 
PARTICULARS Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before Income Tax 23,957 19,947 

Adjustments for:-

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,626 2,461 
Dividend income - (30) 
Finance costs 68 92 
Net Impairment losses on financial assets 141 97 
Provision for advances 33 -
Interest Income on Financial Assets at amortised cost (2,130) (1,411) 
Unwinding of discount on Security Deposits (3) (4) 
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme 34 -
Loss on Sale/Retirement of property, plant & equipment (Net) 32 15 
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (549) (674) 
Provision no longer required written back (129) -
Unrealised Gain on foreign currency transactions (Net) (146) (49) 
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 23,934 20,444 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables (4,795) (94) 
(Increase) I Decrease in Current Loans 20 89 
(Increase) I Decrease in Contract Assets (3,154) (228) 
(Increase) I Decrease in Non-current Loans - (0) 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other current financial assets (18) (147) 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other non-current financial assets 86 106 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other current assets {183) (735) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other non-current assets (0) 1 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other bank balances 8 -
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 3,296 1,779 
Increase I (Decrease) in Current Provisions and Trade Payables (622} 3,409 
Increase I (Decrease) ln Non-current Provisions {87) 83 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other current financial liabilities 162 733 
Increase/ (Decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities 24 (1,079) 
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other current liabilities 1 196 
Cash generated from Operations 18,672 24,557 
Income Taxes paid (3,887} (3,569) 
Net cash inflow from Operating Activities (Al 14,785 20,988 
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Payments for purchase of property, plant & equipment including Capital 
Work in Progress, Intangible Assets and Capital Advances (7,179) (4,783) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 109 14 
Purchase of Investment into Subsidiaries (6,264) (9,666) 
Loan to subsidiary - (3,910) 
Repayment of Loan - 4,600 
Payment for purchase of Current I nvestmenls (4,806) (5,117) 
Payment for purchase of Non Current Investments (1,800) -
Proceeds from sale of Current Investments 5,026 3,171 
Investment in deposits with bank (2,546) (5,079) 
Dividend income - 30 
Interest Received 2,102 1,411 
Net cash used in Investing Activities (Bl (15,358) (19,329) 

• 



Pl Industries Ltd. 
I STANDALONE STATEMENT OF AUDITED CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 

Annexura I 

(Inf Million) 
PARTICULARS Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

C, CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Principal elements of lease payments (169) 
Interest paid (67) 
Dividends paid (2,276) 
Net Cash (outflow) from Financing Activities (C ) (2,512) 
Net Cash inflow (outflow) from Operating, Investing & Financing Activities (A+B+C) (3,085) 

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents (3,085) 
Opening balance of Cash & Cash equlvalents 7,658 
Closing balance of Cash & Cash equivalents 4,573 

Nole: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise ofthe 
following: 

i) Cash on Hand 0 
ii) Balance with Banks : 

-In Current Accounts 3,223 
-In Fixed Deposits 1,350 

Total 4,573 

The above standalone statement of cash flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as sat out in IND AS - 7. 

1.Figures in brackets indicate cash outflows. 

(212) 
(92) 

(1,744) 
(2,048) 

(389) 

(389) 
8,047 
7,658 

0 

3,878 
3,780 
7,658 

2.The sign '0' in these standalone audited financial results indicates that the amounts involved are below f five lacs and the sign·. 
' indicates that the amounts are nil. 

This is the standalone statement of cash flow referred to our report of even date 



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of PI Industries Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PI Industries Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), controlled trust, its associate and joint ventures (refer 
Note 3(a) to the attached consolidated financial statements), which comprise the consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, controlled trust, 
its associate and joint ventures as at March 31, 2025, and consolidated total comprehensive income 
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the "Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements" section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group, controlled trust, its associate and joint ventures in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in 
terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant 
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Pric:e Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Building No. 8, 8th Floor, Tower - B, DLF Cyber City, Gurugram - 122 002 
T: +91 (124) 6169910 

Registered office and Head office: 11-A, Vishnu Ofgamber Marg, Sucheta Bhawan. New Delhi - 110002 

Prjce Waterhouse {a Partnership Firm} converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountan~s LLP (a Limited liability Partnership wilh LLP ident ity no: LlPrN AAC-5001} 
with effect from July 25, 2011. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAI registration number is 012754N/NS00016 {ICAI registration 
number before conversio,1 was 012754N) 
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Assessment of impairment of Our audit procedures include the following: 
Property Plant and Equipment, 
Right of Use Assets, Capital Work in 
Progress, Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets pertaining to 
consolidated financial statements of 
PI Health Science Limited 

(Refer to notes 46 in the consolidated 
financial statements) 

As at March 31, 2025, the consolidated 
financial statements include Property 
Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Assets, 
Capital Work in Progress, Goodwill and 
Other Intangible Assets pertaining to PI 
Health Sciences Limited amounting to Rs. 
10,005 Mn. 

The Group has performed an impairment 
assessment of the carrying value of 
abovementioned assets as on the balance 
sheet date by estimating the recoverable 
value of the related cash generating unit 
('CGU') using the discounted cash flow 
model with the involvement of a valuation 
expert engaged by the management. Based 
on its assessment, the management has 
concluded that no provision for 
impairment of abovementioned assets was 
necessary as at March 31, 2025. 

We considered this as a key audit matter 
because of the significant carrying amount 
of the Property Plant and Equipment, 
Right of Use Assets, Capital Work in 
Progress, Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets and high estimation uncertainty in 
assumptions used such as discount rate, 
rate of growth over the estimation period 
and terminal growth rate which are 
affected by future market and economic 
conditions and, hence, are inherently 
uncertain. 

• We understood from the management, 
assessed the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the Group's Key control 
around assessment of impairment of Property 
Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Assets, 
Capital Work in Progress, Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets. 

• We evaluated whether the Group's 
determination of CGU was consistent with our 
understanding and knowledge of its 
operations. 

• We evaluated the competence, capability, 
independence and objectivity of the 
management's expert, obtained an 
understanding and evaluated the work of the 
management's expert. 

• Together with the auditor's valuation experts:-

o Examined the report prepared by the external 
valuation expert engaged by the management 
and understood and evaluated the projections 
thereon by testing key inputs and assumptions 
made in the value in use calculations and 
performed sensitivity analysis. 

o Assessed the key assumptions considered in 
forecasting the cash flows for assessment of 
recoverable value of the CGU. 

• Read the component auditor's report on the 
consolidated financial statements of PI Health 
Science Limited to identify any information/ 
disclosure which may have an impact on the 

1 

assessment of Property Plant and Equipment, 
Right of Use Assets, Capital Work in Progress, 
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
impairment. 

• We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures 
made in the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the requirements of the 
Standard. 
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: Appropriateness of Purchase Price 
· Allocation on acquisition of a 

subsidiary 
(Refer note 42 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements) 

During the year, the Group acquired a 
controlling interest in Plant Health Care 
Limited through a Share Purchase 
Agreement ("SP A") for a total purchase 
consideration of INR 3,639 Mn. 

The acquisition was assessed to be a 
business combination in accordance with 
Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations" (the 
'Standard'), and accordingly, the 
identifiable assets and liabilities assumed 
were recognised at fair values at the date of 
acquisition and the excess of fair value of 
net identifiable assets over the acquisition 
cost was recognised as Goodwill. 

The Group's Management has determined 
the fair value of the net identifiable assets 
acquired, along with the assistance of a 
valuation expert ("management's expert") 
to determine fair values of certain assets, 
for the purpose of allocation of the 
purchase consideration to the various 
assets and liabilities based on such fair 
values ("Purchase Price Allocation" or 
"PPA"). 

Consequent to the PP A, the Group has 
recognised net assets ofINR 1,761 Mn and 
Goodwill of INR 1,878 Mn in accordance 
with the Standard. 

Significant assumptions and estimates 
were used by the management and the 
management's expert in the determination 
of the fair values of the identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed in the 
business combination and thus, we 
considered this to be a key audit matter. 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

• We understood from the management, 
assessed the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the Group's key controls over 
the accounting for business combinations. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

We evaluated the competence, capability, 
independence and objectivity of the 
management's expert, obtained an 
understanding and evaluated the work of the 
management's expert. 

We perused the SPA, traced the value of the 
consideration transferred and obtained 
understanding of various terms of the SPA 
through inquiries with management. 

We involved auditor's valuation expert 
("auditor's expert") to review the PPA 
including the work of the management's expert 
to assess reasonableness of the underlying key 
assumptions used in determining the fair value 
of assets and liabilities as at the acquisition 
date. 

We verified the mathematical accuracy of the 
calculations involved and the computation of 
Goodwill. 

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures 
made in the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the requirements of the 
Standard. 
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Other Information 

5. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the Integrated Annual Report but does not include the consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In 
connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of the other 
auditors as furnished to us (Refer paragraph 14 and 15 below), we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

6. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view 
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows, 
and changes in equity of the Group including its controlled trust, its associate and joint ventures in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
inclu.ded in the Group, controlled trust and of its associate and joint ventures are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

7. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies • 
included in the Group, controlled trust and of its associate and joint ventures are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the Group, controlled trust and of its associate and joint ventures to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

8. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, controlled trust and of its 
associate and joint ventures are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group, 
controlled trust and of its associate and joint ventures. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
To the Members of Pl Industries Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Page 5 of11 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. U oder Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group, controlled trust and its 
associate and joint ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group, controlled trust 
and its associate and joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group, controlled trust and its associate and joint ventures to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

11. We communicate ·with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 
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13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Other Matters 

14. The consolidated financial statements of two subsidiaries (including three step down subsidiaries, one 
associate and two joint venture) and one step down subsidiary (including further five step down 
subsidiaries) reflect total assets of Rs 15,190 Mn and net assets of Rs 2,622 Mn as at March 31, 2025, 
total revenue of Rs. 2,755 Mn, total comprehensive loss (comprising ofloss and other comprehensive 
loss) of Rs 2,641 Mn and net cash flows amounting to Rs 168 Mn for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The financial statements of these subsidiaries have 
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Holding Company's 
management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these two subsidiaries (including three step down 
subsidiaries, one associate and two joint venture) and one step down subsidiary (including further five 
step down subsidiaries) and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including 
report on Other Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and step down subsidiary 
is based on the reports of the other auditors and the procedures performed by us. 

15. The standalone financial statements of four subsidiaries and one controlled trust reflect total assets of 
Rs 3,433 Mn and net assets of Rs 2,646 Mn as at March 31, 2025, total revenue of Rs. 2,515 Mn, total 
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs 252 Mn and net 
cash flows amounting to Rs (154) Mn for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 
financial statements. The financial statements of these subsidiaries and controlled trust have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Holding Company's 
management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and controlled trust and our report 
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information insofar as it 
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and controlled trust, is based on the reports of the other auditors 
and the proce~ures performed by us. 

16. We did not audit the financial statements of tl-vo subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total 
assets of Rs 4,401 Mn (before consolidation adjustment) and net assets of Rs 4,364 Mn (before 
consolidation adjustment) as at March 31, 2025, total revenue of Rs 135 Mn, total comprehensive 
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs 158 Mn and net cash flows 
amounting to Rs 30 Mn for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. The financial statements of these subsidiaries are unaudited and have been furnished to us 
by the management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to 
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub­
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information insofar as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, these financial 
statements are not material to the Group. • 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the 
work done and reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the management. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

17. As required by paragraph 3(:xx:i) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO 2020"), 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we 
report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks included by the respective auditors in their 
CARO 2020 reports issued in respect of the financial statements of the companies which are included 
in these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, CARO 2020 is not 
applicable to one step down subsidiary (further having five step down subsidiary), two subsidiaries 
and controlled trust included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, hence this report doesn't 
contain a statement on the matter specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of Caro 2020 in relation to that step 
down subsidiary (further having five step down subsidiary), two subsidiaries and controlled trust. 

18. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters stated in paragraph 
18(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule u(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(as amended). 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 
as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the 
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, associate company and joint venture entity 
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate company and 
joint venture entity incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is 
made to our remarks in paragraph 18(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and 
paragraph 18(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules. 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in Annexure A. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 
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i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on 
the consolidated financial position of the Group, controlled trust, its associate company and 
joint ventures- Refer Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. 

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025 - Refer Note 7(g) and 15 (c) to 
the consolidated financial statements in respect of such items as it relates to the Group, its 
associate, controlled trust and joint ventures. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, controlled 
trust, associate and joint ventures incorporated in India during the year. 

1v. (a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures 
and associate which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have 
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate respectively that, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, other than as disclosed in Note 43 (xi) to the consolidated financial statements, 
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding 
Company or any of such subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate ("illtirnate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the lltimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associate which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, 
joint ventures and associates respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the Notes 43 (xii) to the financial statements, no funds have been 
received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party ("ffitimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries, 
joint ventures, controlled trust and associate which are companies incorporated in India 
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or 
other auditors' notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule n(e) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The dividend declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year and until the date 
of this audit report is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act. The other subsidiary 
companies, associate, controlled trust and joint ventures, has not declared or paid any 
dividend during the year. 
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VI. Based on our examination, which included test checks and that perlonned by the respective 
auditors of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which are companies incorporated 
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act: 

(a) the Holding Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that (a) 
the audit log at the application level, will not get generated in case of modification, if any 
performed by the users with certain specific privileged access; and (b) the audit trail 
feature at database level which was enabled from May 11, 2024 contains only the 
modified values to record any direct changes at the database level. During the course of 
perlorming our procedures, in respect of the audit trail feature enabled, we did not 
notice any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. Also, refer note 4 7 to 
the standalone financial statements 

Further, the audit trail to the extent maintained in the prior year, has been preserved by 
the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

(b) the following remarks were included in the audit reports dated May 19, 2025, May 12, 

2025, May 9, 2025, May 8, 2025 and April 23, 2025 containing an unmodified opinion 
issued by other auditors on the consolidated financial statements for two subsidiaries; 
and on the standalone financial statements of four subsidiaries, which is reproduced as 
under: 
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Name of Subsidiary 

1. PI Bio Ferma Private Limited 
2. PI Fermachem Private Limited 
3. PILL Finance and Investments 
Limited 

PI Health Science Limited 

Jivagro Limited 

Remarks in Audit Report 

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the 
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account which have a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout 
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software except that the audit log was not enabled to 
capture any direct changes at the database level Further, 
during the course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 
Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the 
company as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention 

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the 
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account which have a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout 
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software, except that the audit log is not maintained in 
case of modification, if any, by users with specific access 
rights; and was not enabled to capture any direct changes 
at the database level. Further, during the course of our 
audit, we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature 
being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been 
preserved by the company as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention. In case of the financial 
statements of one subsidiary and two step-down 
subsidiaries incorporated outside India, the reporting 
requirement under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. Hence, we 
have not commented on the same. 

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the 
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account which have a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout 
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software, except that the audit log is not maintained in 
case of modification, if any, by users with specific access 
rights; and was not enabled to capture any direct changes 
at the database level. Further, during the course of our 
audit, we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature 
being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been 
preserved by the company as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention. 
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Name of Subsidiary 

PI Life Sciences Research Limited 

Remarks in Audit Report 

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the 
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account which have a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout 
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software except that the audit log was not enabled to 
capture any direct changes at the database level. Further, 
during the course of our audit, we did not notice any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. In case 
of an associate company incorporated in India, based on 
the auditor report of the associate, the Company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account 
which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and that has operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, 
during the course of our audit, they did not notice any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. In case 
of the financial statements of one joint venture 
incorporated outside India, the reporting requirement 
under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 is not applicable. Hence, we have not 
commented on the same. Additionally, the audit trail has 
been preserved by the Parent Company and above referred 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention. 

19. The Holding Company and one subsidiary (further having three step down subsidiaries) has paid/ 
provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act and for five subsidiaries, its associate and 
two joint ventures based on the report of their respective statutory auditors, no managerial 
remuneration has been paid. Further, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to 
controlled trust as per the reports of their respective statutory auditors and two subsidiaries and one 
step down subsidiary (further having five step down subsidiaries) incorporated outside India. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 

~ A,,4(~ 
Sougata Mukherjee 
Partner 
Membership Number: 057084 
UDIN: 25057084BMOASU6930 
Date: May 19, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for 
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of PI Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") 
and its six subsidiaries (further having three step down subsidiaries), its associate and two joint 
venture entities, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. Reporting under clause 
(i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to two subsidiaries namely PI Japan 
Co. Limited and PI Industries Management Consultancies LLC and one step down subsidiary 
namely Plant Health Care Limited (further having five step down subsidiaries) entities incorporated 
outside India and a controlled trust namely PII ESOP trust. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its six subsidiaries (further having three 
step down subsidiaries), its associate and two joint venture entities, to whom reporting under clause 
(i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements is applicable, which are companies incorporated in 
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note issued by the !CAI and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAJ. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below is sufficient and 
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appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial 
controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

6. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected . .Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opmmn, the Holding Company, its six subsidiaries (further having three step down 
subsidiaries), its associate and two joint venture entities, which are companies incorporated in India, 
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 



Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report 

Referred to in paragraph 18(g) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of PI Industries 
Limited on the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Page3 of3 

Other Matter 

9. Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to six 
subsidiaries (further having three stepdown subsidiaries), one associate and two joint venture entity, 
which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of 
such companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 012.754N/N500016 

or/4"4(-
Sougata Mukherjee 
Partner 
Membership Number: 057084 
UDIN: 25057084BMOASU6930 
Date: May 19, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 



El Pl Industries Ltd. 
STATEMENT OF AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 

(In t' Million) 

Quarter ended Year ended 

S.No Particulars 31.03.2025 31 .12.2024 31 .03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Audited** Unaudited Audited~ Audited Audited 

I Revenue from operations 17,871 19,008 17,410 79,778 76,658 
II Other Income 734 759 579 3,442 2,077 

~ 

Ill Total Income (1+11) - 18,605 19,767 17,989 83,220 78,735 
IV Expenses 

Cost of materials Consumed 7,733 7,874 8,497 33,248 35,787 

Purchases of stock -in• trade 249 437 381 1,779 2,629 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in 48 679 (844) 2,684 (40) proQress and stock in trade 

Employee benefit expense 1,970 1,910 1,784 7,837 7,013 
Finance cost 79 83 109 330 300 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 902 991 799 3,525 3,082 

Net impairment losses on financial assets 123 13 19 427 168 
0th er expense 3,192 2,975 3,155 12,013 10,954 -
Total Expenses 14,296 14,962 13,900 61,843 59,893 

V Share of Profit of associate and Joint venture 13 2 24 43 105 

VI Profit before exceptional items and tax (111-IV+V) 4,322 4,807 4,113 21,420 18,947 

VII Exception al items - - - - -
VIII Profit before tax (VI-VII) ,_ 4,322 4,807 4,113 21,420 18,947 
IX Income tax expense 

Current tax 932 981 761 4,322 3,562 
Deferred tax 141 216 (348) 694 (1,525) 
Income tax of earlier years ,_ (56) (117) 5 (198) 95 
Total Tax Expense 1,017 1,080 418 4,818 2,132 ,~ 

,_ 
X Profit !,a r the period/ year (VIII - IX) 3,305 3,727 3,695 16,602 16,815 

XI Other Comprehensive lncome/(Lossl after taK (OCI) 

A Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurements gainl{loss) on defined benefits plans 113 (24) (117) 42 (96) 

Income tax relating to the above item (39) . ' 9 40 (13) 33 
B Item that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

Effective portion of gainl(loss) on cash fiow hedges 413 (559) ,, 251 (369) 524 

lnccme tax relating to above item (144) 188 (87) 128 (183) 

Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 134 (163) (68) 107 (33) 

Total Other Comprehensive lncomel(Loss) for the 477 (549) 19 (105) 245 perio<Vyear -
-

XII Total Comprehensive Income for the period/ year 3,782 3,178 3,714 16,497 17,060 (X+XI) - -
XIII Paid-up equity share capital 

(Face value of~ 11- each (Previous Year" 11- each)) 152 152 152 152 152 
XIV Other Equity excluding Revaluation Reserves as per 1,01,418 87,158 Balance sheet 

xv Earning per Share• (in ~) 

(a) Basic 21.79 24.55 24.36 109.44 110.85 
(bl Diluted 21.78 24.55 24.35 109.42 110.83 
See accompanying notes to the financial results 

• Actuals for the quarter, not annualised 

*" Refer Note No 4 



Pl Industries Ltd. 
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31ST MARCH 2025 

(In f Million) 
Asat 

S.No Pa rticu I ars 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Audited Audited 
Consolidated 

I ASSETS 

1 Non Current Assets 

Property, Plant & Equipment 33,183 29,543 
Capital worK-in-progress 3,841 1,731 
Goodwill 5,539 3,611 
Other Intangible assets 3,365 2,129 
Intangible asset under development 1,661 1,050 
Investments accounted for using the equity method 378 335 
Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 2,338 568 
(ii) Other financial assets 2,363 581 

Deferred tax assets ( net) 273 469 
Non-Current Tax Assets 107 294 
Other non-current assets 197 544 
Total non-currant assets 53,245 40,855 

2 Current Assets 

Inventories 9,839 13,012 
Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 12,598 12,460 
(ii) Trade receivables 14,058 9,299 
(iii) Casn and casn equivalents 5,923 8,865 
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 19,073 18,174 
(v) Loans 23 37 
(vi) Other financial assets 179 187 

Contract assets 4,268 1,612 
Other current assets 3,561 3,139 
Total cunrent assets 69,522 66,785 

Total Assets 1,22,767 1,07,640 

II EQUITY & LIABILITIES 

1 Equity 

Equity Share Capital 152 152 
Other Equity 1,01,418 87,158 
Tota I equity 1,01,570 87,310 

2 Liabilities 

Non Current Liabilities 

Financial Liab i I mes 

(i) Borrowings 780 617 
(ii) Lease Lia bi I ities 457 438 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 1,866 1,603 

Provisions 266 364 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 551 202 

Total Non current liabilities 3,920 3,224 
Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 337 662 
(ii) Lease Li abilities 267 189 
(iii) Trade payables 

a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 522 306 
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11,580 12,172 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 3,012 2,361 

Provisions 286 366 
Current Tax Liabilities 255 62 
other current liabilities 1,018 988 
Total current liabilities n 17,277 17,106 

Total Liabilities 21,197 20,330 

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,22,767 1,07 640 .-4 

\_~ 
-



Pl Industries Ltd. 
Notes: 

The 11bove Consolidated financial results were reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee of the Company and 
approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 19, 2025. 

2 The Consolidated Financial results for all the periods presented have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and 
measurement principles of Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from 
time to time. 

3 The Consolidated financial results include the results of the following entities namely, P,mmt Company - Pl Industries Limited; 
Subsidiaries (including step down subsidiaries): (a) Pl Health Sciences Limited (b) Pl Health Sciences USA, LLC (c) Pl Health 
Sciences Netherlands BV (d) Archimica S.p.A Italy (e) Plant Health Care limited (f) Plant Health Care, Inc, Nevada (g) Plant Health 
Care de Mexico S. de R.L. de c.v. (h) Plant Health Care (UK) Limited (i) Plant Health Care Espana U) Plant Health Care lnsumos 
Agricolas L TDA (k) Jlvagro Limited (I) Pl Life Science Research Limited (m) Pl Industries Management Consultancies L.L.C Dubai 
(n) PILL Finance and Investments Limited (o) Pl Japan Co. Limited (p) Pl Bioferma Private Limited (q) Pl Fermachem Private 
Limited ;Controlled trust - Pl ESOP Trust; Joint Venture - (a) Pl Kumiai Private Limited (b) Pl Flowtech B.V. ; Associate - Sollnnos 
Agro Sciences Private Limited. 

4 The Figures for the March quarter are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of full financial year and the 
published unaudited year to date figures up to the third quarter of respective financial year. 

5 Consolidated statement of Cash Flows is attached in Annexure I. 

6 During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Company ("Pl Industries Ltd.") had acquired the entire share capital of Plant 
Health Care Pie, a England and Wales incorporated Company through its wholly owned subsidiary, "Pl Industries Management 
Consultancies L.L.C.", Dubai. This acquisition is effective from August 20, 2024 pursuant to a court sanctioned scheme of 
arrangement. 
This transaction has been accounted for in accordance with the acquisition method specified in Ind AS 103 "Business 
Combination". Out of the total purchase consideration off 3,639 Mn, f 1,878 Mn, representing excess of the fair value of the net 
assets acquired, has been recognised as goodwill. 

7 The Company raised f 20,000 Mn during the quarter ended September 30, 2020 through Qualified Institutional Placement (QIP) of 
equity shares. Out of the funds received of 'f 19,750 Mn (net of expense of i!' 250 Mn), the Company invested f 16,105 Mn in its 
subsidiaries. Balance funds of f 3,645 Mn received pursuant to QI P remain invested in liquid and other debt mutual funds. 

8 Segment information as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" is as per Annexure II. 

9 The Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 19, 2025 have recommended final dividend of 'f 10 per equity share, subject 
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual General Meeting. With this, total dividend for the year (including 
interim dividend of f 6 per equity share paid during the year) is if 16 per share. 

10 The previous period's/ year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged/ reclassified wherever necessary. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 19, 2025 

Regd. Office: Udaisagar Road, Udaipur - 313001 (Raj) 

Phone: 0294 2492451-55 Fax: 0294 2491946 
ClN: L24211RJ1946PLC000469 

For Pl Industries Limited 

Mayank Singha! 
Vice Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN : 00006651 



1,..plradb1 Scloncc Pl Industries Ltd. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 

PARTICULARS 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before Income Tax 

Adjustments for:-

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Finance costs 

Net impairment losses on financial assets 

Provision for Advances 

Interest Income on financial assets at amortised cost 

Unwinding of discount on security deposits 

Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme 

Loss on sale/retirement of property, plant & equipment (Net) 

(Gain) on sale of investments (net) 

(Gain) on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (Net) 

Share of (profit) of associate and joint venture 

Provision no longer required written back 

Unrealised (Gain) on foreign currency transactions (Net) 

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 

(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 

(Increase)/ Decrease in current Loans 

(Increase)/ Decrease in contract assets 

(Increase)/ Decrease in other current financial assets 

(Increase)/ Decrease in other non-current financial assets 

(Increase)/ Decrease in other current assets 

(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current assets 

(Increase) I Decrease in other bank balances 

(lncrease)/Decrease in inventories 

Increase I (Decrease) in Current Provisions and Trade Payables 

Increase I (Decrease) in current provisions 

Increase/ (Decrease) in non-current provisions 

Increase/ (Decrease) in other current financial liabilities 

Increase/ (Decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities 

Increase I (Decrease) in other current liabilities 

Cash generated from Operations 

Income Taxes paid (net of refund) 

Net cash inflow from Operating Activities {A) 

B. CASH FLOW FflOM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Payments for purchase of property, plant & equipment including capital 
work in progress, intangible assets and capital advances 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 

Consideration paid for acquisition of subsicliary, net of cash acquired 

Payment for Purchase of Current Investments 

Payment for purchase of non current investments 

Proceeds from Sale of current investments 

Investment in deposit in bank 

Interest Received 

Net cash used In Investing Activities (BJ 

• 

Annexure I 
(In , Million 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Audited Audited 

21,420 18,947 

3,525 3,082 
330 300 
427 168 

33 -
(2,227) (1,249) 

(3) (4) 
34 -
33 18 
- (11) 

(552) (659) 
(43) (105) 

(390) -
(148) (49) 

22,439 20,438 
(4,707) (276) 

(2) 10 
(2,656) (228) 

(5) (349) 
60 307 

(290) (897) 
1 1 
8 -

3,410 2,045 
(676) 3,236 
- (176) 
(56) 112 
415 995 

(4) (879) 
30 (230) 

17,967 24,109 
(3,837) (3,750) 
14,130 20,359 

(8,500) (6,204) 
121 14 

(3,554) (6,337) 
(4,806) (5,117) 
(1,800) (536) 
5,026 3,171 

(2,956) (4,528) 
2,227 1,532 

{14,242) (18,005) 



Pl Industries Ltd. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 

Annexure I 
(In~ Million) 

PARTICULARS For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Audited Audited 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Repayment of Borrowings (341) -
Proceeds from Borrowings 149 248 
Principal elements of lease payments (258) (267) 

Interest paid (139) (453) 
Dividends paid (2,276) (1,744) 

Net Cash inflow (outflow) from Financing Activities (C) (2,865) (2,216) 
Net Cash inflow (outflow) from Operating, Investing & Financing Activities (A+B+C) (2,977) 138 
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency Cash & Cash 

equivalents 35 -
Net increase (decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents (2,942) 138 
Opening balance of Cash & Cash equivalents 8,865 8,727 

Closing balance of Cash & Cash equivalents 5,923 8,865 

Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the 
following: . 
i) Cash on Hand 0 0 
ii) Balance with Banks : 

-In Current Accounts 4,258 4,399 
-In Fixed Deposits 1,665 4,466 

Total 5,923 8,865 

The above Consolidated statement of Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in IND AS - 7. 

1 .Figures in brackets indicate cash outflows. 

2.The sign •o· in these consolidated audited financial results indicates that the amounts involved are below 't five lacs and the sign '-' 
indicates that the amounts are nil. 



Pl Industries Ltd. 
1,u•;pfrctd by Sdo•r,c.e Annexure II 

Consolidated Segment-Wise Revenue, Results, Assets, Liabilities and Capital Employed 
for the Quarter and Year ended 31st March 2025 

(In, Million) 
Quarter Ended Year Ended 

S.Nc Particulars 31.03.2025 31 .12.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 

1 Segment Revenue 
a. Agro chemicals 17,031 18,381 16,695 77,650 73,509 
b. Pharma 850 637 715 2,151 3,149 
Total 17,881 19,018 17,410 79,801 76,658 
Less : Inter Segment Revenue 10 10 - 23 -

Segment Revenue 17,871 19,008 17,410 79,778 76,658 

2 Segment Results 

Pmfitl(Loss) llefore tax 

a. Agro chemicals 4,989 5,366 4,503 23,914 20,051 
b. Pharma (821) (703) (521) (3,045) (1,481) 

Add: Inter segment adjustment 154 144 131 551 377 
Profit befora Tax II 4,322 4,807 4,113 21,420 18,947 

3 Segment Assets 
a. Agro chemicals 1,09,442 1,07,774 94,353 1,09.442 94,353 
b. Pharma 13,325 12,955 13,287 13,325 13,287 

-
Segment Assets 1,22,767 1,20,729 1,07,640 1,22,767 1,07,640 

4 Segment Liabilities 

a. Agro chemicals 17,027 18,598 16,016 17,027 16,016 
b. Pharma 4,170 3,471 4,314 4,170 4,314 

Segment Liabilities 21,197 22,069 20,330 21,197 20,330 

s Capital Employed 
{Segment Assets-Segment Liabilities) 

a. Agro cnemicals 92,415 89,176 78,337 92,415 78,337 
b. Pharma 9,155 9,484 8,973 9,155 8,973 

Capital Employed 
I , 

1,01,570 98,660 87,310 1,01,570 87..,310 

Notes: 
The business of the Group is divided into two segments as below: 

a) Agro chemicals 
Agro chemicals includes Agcnem exports (CSM) and Domestic Agri Brands. 

bl Pharma 
Phamna comprises Contract Research & Development, Contract Development and Manufacturing of Active, key starting materials 
and intermediates used in pharmaceutical industry. 



May 19, 2025 

SSE Limited 
Corporate Relationship Deptt. 
PJ Towers, 25111 Floor, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001 

Code No.523642 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G-Slocl< 
Sandra Kurla Complex, 
Sandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051 

Code No. PIIND 

Inspired by Science 

Sub: Declaration pursuant to Regulation 33(3)(d) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of audit reports with 
unmodified opinion for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 

Pursuant to Regulation 33(3)(d) of the . SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended vide circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD/56/2016 dated 
May 27, 2016, it is hereby declared that the statutory auditors of the Company, M/s Price 
Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN: 012754N / N500016), have issued the audit 
reports with unmodified opinion(s) on the audited financial results (both standalone and 
consolidated) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

This is for your information and record. 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 
For Pl Industries Limited 

s~~ 
Sanjay Agarwal 
Group Chief Financial Officer and 
Head - Strategy and Integrated Development Cell 

Pl Industries Ltd. 
Mumbai Off.: Unit No.3A, 1st Floor, Wing A, CTS No. 1483 D, IA Project Road, Next to JW M arriott Hotel, Sahar, Village Marol, Ta luka Andheri (East}, 
Mumbai - 400099, Maharasht ra. Tel. No. : 022 62665600 
Regd. Off. : Post Box No.20, Udaisagar Road, Udaipur - 313001, Rajasthan, India. Tel.: +91-294-2491451-5, 6651100, Fax: +91-294-2491946 
Email: info@piind.com,www.piindustries.com, CIN: L24211RJ1946PLC000469 
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Corporate Off.: Vipul Square, 5th Floor, B-Block, Sushant Lok, Phase I, Gurgaon – 122009, Haryana, India. Tel.: +91-124-679000 
Regd. Off.: Post Box No.20, Udaisagar Road, Udaipur – 313001, Rajasthan, India. Tel.: +91-294-2491451-5, 6651100, Fax: +91-294-2491946 
Email: info@piind.com, www.piindustries.com, CIN: L24211RJ1946PLC000469 

PI External 

Annexure B 
Information as required under Regulation 30 - Part A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations – Appointment of Secretarial Auditor: 
 

S. 
No.  

        Particulars                       Details 

1. Reason for change viz. 
appointment, re-appointment, 
resignation, removal, death or 
otherwise 

Appointment of Secretarial Auditor  

2. Date of appointment/re-
appointment/cessation (as 
applicable) & term of 
appointment/re-appointment; 

The Board at their meeting held today, i.e., May 
19, 2025, approved the appointment of M/s. 
Makarand M. Joshi & Co. (‘MMJC’), Peer 
Reviewed Firm of Company Secretaries in 
Practice (Firm registration number: 
P2009MH007000; Peer Review Certificate 
number: 6290/2024), as a Secretarial Auditor 
of the Company for a period of 5 (five) 
consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-
26 upto FY 2029-30, subject to approval of the 
Members of the Company at the ensuing AGM. 
 

3. Brief profile (in case of 
appointment); 

MMJC is a leading firm of Practicing Company 
Secretaries with over 25 years of excellence in 
Corporate Governance and Compliance. 
MMJC is widely recognized for its expertise in 
Secretarial Audits, Compliance Audits, and 
Due Diligence across sectors like banking, 
financial services, IT/Telecom, 
pharmaceuticals, FMCG, and infrastructure 
etc. The firm offers end-to-end advisory and 
compliance services under Corporate Laws, 
SEBI Regulations, FEMA Regulations, and 
Merger & Acquisition.  
 
MMJC has developed specialized internal 
teams dedicated for Research & Development, 
Audit, M&A, quality review etc. As MMJC 
progresses on its journey into the future, it 
remains firmly dedicated to empowering its 
clients and maintaining the highest standards 
of corporate governance. 
 

4. Disclosure of relationships between 
directors (in case of appointment of 
a director). 

Not applicable 
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Corporate Off.: Vipul Square, 5th Floor, B-Block, Sushant Lok, Phase I, Gurgaon – 122009, Haryana, India. Tel.: +91-124-679000 
Regd. Off.: Post Box No.20, Udaisagar Road, Udaipur – 313001, Rajasthan, India. Tel.: +91-294-2491451-5, 6651100, Fax: +91-294-2491946 
Email: info@piind.com, www.piindustries.com, CIN: L24211RJ1946PLC000469 

PI External 

Annexure C 
Information as required under Regulation 30 - Part A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations – Re-appointment of Cost Auditor: 
 

S. 
No.  

        Particulars                       Details 

1. Reason for change viz. 
appointment, re-appointment, 
resignation, removal, death or 
otherwise 

Re-appointment of Cost Auditor  

2. Date of appointment/re-
appointment/cessation (as 
applicable) & term of 
appointment/re-appointment; 

The Board at their meeting held today, i.e., May 
19, 2025, approved the re-appointment of M/s 
K.G. Goyal & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 000017), as Cost Auditors of 
the Company for the financial year 2025-26. 
The remuneration of the Cost Auditors is 
subject to ratification by the Members at the 
ensuing AGM 
 

3. Brief profile (in case of 
appointment); 

Not applicable 
 

4. Disclosure of relationships between 
directors (in case of appointment of 
a director). 

Not applicable 
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Annexure D1 
Information as required under Regulation 30 - Part A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations – Re-appointment of Mr. Mayank Singhal, (DIN: 00006651) as Vice 
Chairperson & Managing Director on the Board of the Company: 
 

S. 
No.  

        Particulars                       Details 

1. Reason for change viz. 
appointment, re-appointment, 
resignation, removal, death or 
otherwise 

Subject to approval of the Members of the 
Company, the Board has re-appointed Mr. 
Mayank Singhal, (DIN: 00006651) as Vice 
Chairperson & Managing Director on the Board 
of the Company 
 

2. Date of appointment/ 
re-appointment/cessation (as 
applicable) & term of 
appointment/re-appointment; 

For a period of 5 (five) years with effect from 
October 1, 2025, up to September 30, 2030, 
subject to approval of the Members of the 
Company 

3. Brief profile (in case of 
appointment); 

Not applicable 

4. Disclosure of relationships between 
directors (in case of appointment of 
a director). 

Not applicable 

5. Information as required 
pursuant to BSE Circular with 
ref. No. LIST/COM P/14/2018- 
19 and NSE. with Ref. No. 
NSE/CML/2018/24 dated June 
20, 2018. 

Mr. Mayank Singhal is not debarred from 
holding the office of Director by virtue of any 
SEBI Order or any other such authority 
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Annexure D2 
Information as required under Regulation 30 - Part A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations – Re-appointment of Mr. Rajnish Sarna, (DIN: 06429468) as Joint Managing 
Director on the Board of the Company: 
 

S. 
No.  

        Particulars                       Details 

1. Reason for change viz. 
appointment, re-appointment, 
resignation, removal, death or 
otherwise 

Subject to approval of the Members of the 
Company, the Board has re-appointed Mr. 
Rajnish Sarna, (DIN: 06429468) as Joint 
Managing Director on the Board of the 
Company 
 

2. Date of appointment/ 
re-appointment/cessation (as 
applicable) & term of 
appointment/re-appointment; 

For a period of 3 (three) years with effect from 
November 7, 2025, up to November 6, 2028, 
subject to approval of the Members of the 
Company 
 

3. Brief profile (in case of 
appointment); 

Not applicable 

4. Disclosure of relationships between 
directors (in case of appointment of 
a director). 

Not applicable 

5. Information as required 
pursuant to BSE Circular with 
ref. No. LIST/COM P/14/2018- 
19 and NSE. with Ref. No. 
NSE/CML/2018/24 dated June 
20, 2018. 

Mr. Rajnish Sarna is not debarred from holding 
the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI 
Order or any other such authority 
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Annexure D3 
Information as required under Regulation 30 - Part A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations – Re-appointment of Ms. Lisa J. Brown (DIN: 07053317) as an Independent 
Director on the Board of the Company: 
 

S. 
No.  

        Particulars                       Details 

1. Reason for change viz. 
appointment, re-appointment, 
resignation, removal, death or 
otherwise 

Subject to approval of the Members of the 
Company, the Board has re-appointed Ms. Lisa 
J. Brown (DIN: 07053317) as an Independent 
Director on the Board of the Company 
 

2. Date of appointment/re-
appointment/cessation (as 
applicable) & term of 
appointment/re-appointment; 

For a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years 
with effect from September 25, 2025, up to 
September 24, 2030, subject to approval of the 
Members of the Company 
 

3. Brief profile (in case of 
appointment); 

Not applicable 

4. Disclosure of relationships between 
directors (in case of appointment of 
a director). 

Not applicable 

5. Information as required 
pursuant to BSE Circular with 
ref. No. LIST/COM P/14/2018- 
19 and NSE. with Ref. No. 
NSE/CML/2018/24 dated June 
20, 2018. 

Ms. Lisa J. Brown is not debarred from holding 
the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI 
Order or any other such authority 
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Annexure D4 
Information as required under Regulation 30 - Part A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations – Appointment of Dr. Tanjore Soundararajan Balganesh (DIN: 00648534) as 
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director on the Board of the Company: 
 

S. 
No.  

        Particulars                       Details 

1. Reason for change viz. 
appointment, re-appointment, 
resignation, removal, death or 
otherwise 

Subject to approval of the Members of the 
Company, the Board has appointed Dr. Tanjore 
Soundararajan Balganesh (DIN: 00648534) as 
a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director on 
the Board of the Company. 
 

2. Date of appointment/re-
appointment/cessation (as 
applicable) & term of 
appointment/re-appointment; 

With effect from September 5, 2025 (i.e. upon 
completion of his second term as an 
Independent Director on September 4, 2025), 
subject to approval of the Members of the 
Company. 
 

3. Brief profile (in case of 
appointment); 

Enclosed as Annexure I  

4. Disclosure of relationships between 
directors (in case of appointment of 
a director). 

None 

5. Information as required 
pursuant to BSE Circular with 
ref. No. LIST/COM P/14/2018- 
19 and NSE. with Ref. No. 
NSE/CML/2018/24 dated June 
20, 2018. 

Dr. Balganesh is not debarred from holding the 
office of Director by virtue of any SEBI Order or 
any other such authority. 
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Annexure D5 
Information as required under Regulation 30 - Part A of Schedule Ill of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations – Appointment of Mr. Vegulaparanan Kasi Viswanathan (DIN:01782934) as 
an Additional Director in the category of Independent Director on the Board of the 
Company: 
 

S. 
No.  

        Particulars                       Details 

1. Reason for change viz. 
appointment, re-appointment, 
resignation, removal, death or 
otherwise 

Subject to approval of the Members of the 
Company, the Board has appointed Mr. 
Viswanathan (DIN:01782934) as an Additional 
Director in the category of Independent 
Director on the Board of the Company. 
 

2. Date of appointment/re-
appointment/cessation (as 
applicable) & term of 
appointment/re-appointment; 

For a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with 
effect from May 19, 2025, up to May 18, 2030, 
subject to approval of the Members of the 
Company. 
 

3. Brief profile (in case of 
appointment); 

Enclosed as Annexure II 

4. Disclosure of relationships between 
directors (in case of appointment of 
a director). 

None 

5. Information as required 
pursuant to BSE Circular with 
ref. No. LIST/COM P/14/2018- 
19 and NSE. with Ref. No. 
NSE/CML/2018/24 dated June 
20, 2018. 

Mr. Viswanathan is not debarred from holding 
the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI 
Order or any other such authority 
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Annexure I 
Brief Profile of Dr. Tanjore Soundararajan Balganesh 

Dr. T.S Balganesh is a distinguished Indian scientist renowned for his pioneering contributions 
to antibacterial drug discovery, particularly in the fight against tuberculosis (‘TB’) and other 
infectious diseases. 

Dr. Balganesh earned his PhD in Medical Microbiology from the University of Calcutta, 
focussing on the genetics of Vibrio cholerae and mechanism of drug resistance. He pursued 
post-doctoral research at Brookhaven National Lab, USA and Max Planck Institute for 
Molecular Genetics in Berlin, where he specialised in the genetics of Gram-positive bacteria. 

In 1987, Dr. Balganesh joined Astra Research Centre India, which later became the part of 
the AstraZeneca. By 2000, he was appointed Head of Research at AstraZeneca R&D India, 
where he led the discovery of the company’s first anti-tuberculosis molecule to enter clinical 
development. His leadership extended to projects targeting diarrheal diseases and broad-
spectrum antibacterial agents. 

In December 2011, Dr. Balganesh was appointed as a Distinguished Scientist CSIR (Special 
Secretary GOI, Appointed by the erstwhile Prime Minister of India, Hon. Manmohan Singh) 
CSIR and Head, Open Source Drug Discovery (OSDD) 

Dr. Balganesh currently serves as Director on the board of GangaGen Biotechnologies Pvt. 
Ltd., Open Source Pharma Foundation, IKP Knowledge Park, Ahammune Biosciences 
Pvt.Ltd., Byonox Pvt. Ltd., PI Health Sciences Ltd. and Plant Health Care, Inc, Nevada. 

In recognition of his significant work in TB and Malaria drug discovery, Dr. Balganesh was 
awarded an Honorary Doctoral degree from the University of Uppsala, Sweden in 2011. He 
received the Ivan Ostholm, AZ Medal 2011- for the contributions to Drug Discovery in TB. His 
expertise is sought after by the global health organisations, including the Wellcome Trust and 
the Gates Foundation, where he serves as a mentor and reviewer for drug discovery 
programs. 

Dr. Balganesh is a globally renowned person in pharmaceutical innovation, microbiology and 
drug discovery with a distinguished record of leadership in both academia and industry. His 
insights have significantly contributed to shaping the Company’s R&D orientation, particularly 
in the health sciences and innovation lead areas. His deep understanding of regulatory 
pathways, early-stage research, and translational science remains highly relevant.   
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Annexure II 
 Brief Profile of Mr. Vegulaparanan Kasi Viswanathan 

Mr. Viswanathan joined the Bosch Group, Germany in August 1998 and worked in its global 
headquarters at Stuttgart for about 2.5 years. He took over as Joint Managing Director and 
CFO of Bosch Limited, India in January 2001 responsible for all Commercial, Finance, IT, HR 
matters besides Business Strategy.  Under his leadership, Bosch India witnessed a very 
strong and sustained growth through continuous innovation, focused market-oriented 
approach and excellence in execution thereby significantly enhancing value creation for all 
stakeholders. 

He was seconded to Robert Bosch, USA beginning 2006 as Senior Vice President in the 
Automotive Electronics and Electrical Division, North America and subsequently he became 
the Regional President of the Automotive Electronics and Electricals division in Farmington 
Hills, Michigan, USA.  After successfully completing his assignment, he returned to India as 
President and Country Head of Bosch Group in India and Managing Director of Bosch Limited 
beginning 2008. During his five years at the helm, the Bosch group recorded excellent growth 
in sales turnover and profitability. After he superannuated on December 31, 2012, he was 
appointed the Chairman of Bosch Limited effective July 1, 2013, and stepped down after 
completing his tenure in August 2019.  

The Bosch Group in India boasts of six legal entities having a combined turnover of more than 
Rs. 348 billion (~4.2 bin USD) in FY 2023-24 with a strong presence in Automotive 
Technology, Power Tools, Security Technology, Packaging Technology, Hydraulics, 
Embedded Software, Information Technology, Renewable Energy and Consumer Durables.  
The group directly employs 39769 people in India and is poised to scale even greater heights 
in the next decade because of its strong foundation and market leadership.   

Prior to joining Bosch, Mr. Viswanathan worked in Hindustan Unilever Ltd. (HUL) in many 
senior positions both in India and abroad for 17 years. 

After working with Tata Consultancy Services for 5 years (1977-1982), Mr. Viswanathan joined 
Lipton India Ltd, part of Unilever Group as Management Accountant in 1982.  He quickly rose 
to the position of Commercial Manager (Beverages) in 1985. He played a key role in 
transforming the loss-making Beverages business into a strong and profitable division within 
a short period of 3 years. 

He was later seconded to Unilever Head Quarters in London for a 3-year assignment as Audit 
Head with responsibility for all the countries in Asia Pacific region.   

He returned to Hindustan Unilever Limited in 1992 as Group Treasurer.  Later in 1993 he 
became Financial Controller and Head of Mergers and Acquisitions and continued till 1998.  
During his stint in Unilever India, many high profiles and big-ticket mergers and acquisitions 
were successfully transacted, and a new group architecture was designed and implemented 
by reorganizing and restructuring the 7 Unilever companies into 1 consolidated entity 
Hindustan Unilever Limited. 

He was also on the board of several companies, including Bharti Airtel Limited, ABB India 
Limited, HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited, Magma HDI General Insurance Company 
Limited, TransUnion CIBIL Limited, KSB Limited and is currently the Chairperson & 
Independent Director of the Board at United Spirits Limited and a Director of Royal 
Challengers Sports Private Limited. 
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He was also the President of Indo-German Chamber of Commerce in 2012-13. 
 
Mr. Viswanathan is a Commerce Graduate from Madras University and a Chartered 
Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He has attended advanced 
leadership training programs in many prestigious institutions including Stanford University, 
USA.  He has a flair for teaching and has given many keynote speeches in many national and 
international events. 
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